
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda. 

 
 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, May 4, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Special Presentation - Safe Boating Proclamation (TA) 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 
6. Approval of Agenda 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - April 27, 2018 Work Session (staff-CC) 

8. Approval of 2018 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Fin) 
9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance letter to MGRC regarding electronic forms, 

signatures, and payments (TA) 
10. Approval of change to the May 15, 2018 BOC meeting location or date (staff-CC) 
11. Approval of 2018-2019 Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 

a. Medical (low and high plans) 
b. Dental 
c. Vision 
d. Basic Life 
e. Voluntary Term Life and AD&D 
f. Voluntary Short Term and Long Term Disability 
g. Voluntary AFLAC 
h. Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) 
i. ShawHankins Advantage Benefits Package  

12. Review of the Regional TSPLOST projects (SH) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 
14. County Attorney Report 
15. Commissioner Announcements 

 
Closing 
16. Adjournment 

 
  

  

1



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - April 27, 2018 Work Session (staff-CC) 

  

2



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

April 6, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, April 6, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, April 6, 2018 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by Rev. Garland Hart, Eatonton Presbyterian Church. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hersey. 

 
4. Special Presentation - Retirement Proclamation 

Ms. Cheryl Fincher Merritt retired from the Sheriff’s Office after 16 years, but was unable to 

attend the meeting to receive her watch and proclamation.  (Copy of proclamation made a part of 

the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

3



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

April 6, 2018 

5. Special Presentation - Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation 

A proclamation was presented to Mr. Jesse Little to proclaim April as child abuse prevention 

month. Mr. Little reminded all of the pinwheel ceremony to be held on the courthouse lawn on 

April 10, 2018. (Copy of proclamation made a part of the minutes on minute book page 

__________.) 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

Mr. Don Cottrell commented on building permits. 

 
7. Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Hersey advised that an Executive Session needed to be added to the agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

agenda with the addition of an Executive Session.  Motion carried with Commissioners 

Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 
8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - March 20, 2018 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - March 20, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Authorization for Chairman to sign Putnam County Transit Procurement Manual (staff-

Transit) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

Consent Agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison 

and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of procurement manual made a part of the minutes on 

minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 
9. Update from Sheriff Sills (PCSO) 

Sheriff Howard Sills asked the board to consider prohibiting parking on Edwards Reeves Road, 

Old Milledgeville Road, Parks Road, and the North Bypass tie-in due to races at the Headhunters 

Racetrack.  He explained that emergency personnel cannot get in due to the number of cars 

parked in the right-of-way.  Ms. Patrice Terrell spoke regarding right-of-way vs. private property 

for no parking on Edwards Reeves Road. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to authorize 

the Chairman to sign a no parking resolution.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, 

Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of resolution made a 

part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 9:18 a.m. to see the new Fire/Rescue Pumper truck. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 9:32 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

April 6, 2018 

10. Approval of Local TSPLOST Project Implementation Revision (staff-CM) 

Mr. Larry Kaiser explained the revised project sheet – no real changes made, just combined 

LMIG projects and Off-System Safety projects with TSPLOST projects and removed duplicates.  

The following additional changes were discussed: 

• removed LMIG Match as an expenditure; ADD to the Available Local 

TSPLOST, $150,000 x 5 years = $750,000. BOC stated that other future county funding 

sources will be utilized to fund LMIG Match requirement 

• corrected Local TSPLOST allocation on the spreadsheet for ROW Mowing from 

$100,000 for 1 year TO $100,000 for 5 years; DEDUCT $500,000 

• Temporary removal of the Scott Road @ Harmony intersection re-alignment project from 

the Local TSPLOST program pending the 5/22/2018 Regional sales tax vote. No changes 

to the "Available LOCAL TSPLOST" funding until which time the vote occurs.  

• Commissioner Addison asked for the following changes to his project list: 

o Remove the west end of Blue Gill Road from the resurfacing list and stripe with 

PAINT 

o Resurface east Blue Gill but no widening; restripe with THERMOPLASTIC 

o Mill/Resurface and stripe with THERMOPLASTIC South Shore Road from Twin 

Bridges Road to Blue Gill Road 

o Remove PAINT Striping and asphalt patching of South Shore Road 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

Local TSPLOST project implementation revised list with additional discussed changes.  

Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman 

Hersey voting yes. (Copy of project list made a part of the minutes on minute book pages 

__________ to __________.) 

 

11. Approval of a work session concerning the MOU between Putnam County and Piedmont 

Water Company, following the May 4th BOC meeting (AF) 

Commissioner Foster requested a work session to discuss the Putnam County and Piedmont 

Water Company MOU.  Chairman Hersey called a work session for May 4, 2018 following the 

regular meeting. 

 
12. Discussion and possible action regarding the fee for collection of school taxes (SH) 

Chairman Hersey reminded all of the March 20, 2018 meeting when County Manager Van Haute 

advised that we need to charge 2.5% for collecting school taxes.  He went over the history of this 

issue since 2006.  He would like to submit local legislation to set the fee at a reasonable rate.  

County Attorney Fleming advised that the resolution passed in 2009 to collect .45% is not legally 

sufficient to override the law requiring the 2.5% collection. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to direct staff 

(County Manager and County Attorney) to come up with a solution regarding the fee for 

collection of school taxes for the future, passing local legislation in the next legislative 

session, and to also investigate what our options are for the current situation and perhaps 

any arrearages, should it matter.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, 

Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes.  

 

 

 

5



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

April 6, 2018 

Executive Session 

12.1 Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4, if necessary, for 

Personnel, Litigation, or Real Estate 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Brown, to enter 

Executive Session for litigation purposes.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, 

Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 10:57 a.m. 

 

 

12.2 Motion to reopen meeting and Execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed 

portion of the meeting 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to reopen the 

meeting and execute an affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book 

page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 11:37 a.m. 

 

 

12.3 Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

County Attorney Fleming reported that one legal matter was discussed with no final action. 

 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

• Public Works Shop Foreman Anthony Frazier briefed the board on the vacuum truck 

demo – he was impressed with it – it has a lot of potential 

• thanked the board for support with the new fire truck 

• staff has stepped up with Magistrate Judge Ellen Pierce’s passing – Jesse Copelan was 

appointed Chief Magistrate for the remainder of the year 

• courthouse is being pressure washed now 

• the Martin Mill bridge replacement project is on hold for now, GDOT is working on 

right-of-way costs – original estimate was $138,000 for 1.19 acres 

• Villanova is NCAA National Champs!! 

 

14. County Attorney Report 

No report 

 

 
 

 
 

6



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

April 6, 2018 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Foster: the Georgia Heart program for rural hospitals now allows you to donate to 

Putnam General and receive a 100% state income tax credit.  He advised to make contributions 

as early as possible so we don’t exceed the state cap of $60 million. 

 

Commissioner Addison: expressed sympathy to Ellen Pierce’s family 

 

Chairman Hersey: advised that the Senate did not pass HR158; expressed sympathy to County 

Attorney Fleming in the recent loss of his mother; and advised we would not be at the next 

regular meeting. 

 
Closing 
16. Adjournment 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. 
 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:52 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

7



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the April 6, 2018 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

8



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

April 27, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Work Session 

Minutes 

Friday, April 27, 2018 ◊ 11:30 AM 

Savannah Marriott Riverfront 

Mercer Room 

100 General McIntosh Boulevard 

Savannah, GA  31401 

 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on April 27, 2018 at approximately 11:30 AM 

in the Mercer Room of the Savannah Marriott Riverfront, 100 General McIntosh Boulevard, 

Savannah, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

SHAWHANKINS 

James Clark 

K.D. Gazoway 

Jonathan Shaw 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called to work session to order at approximately 12:13 p.m. (Copy of agenda 

made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

9



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

April 27, 2018 

Called Work Session 
2. Employee Insurance Discussions 

Mr. Jonathan Shaw announced that Putnam County had a positive year from a claims perspective 

and that the wellness program was having a positive effect.  He advised that there would be a 

1.54% increase if no changes were made to the plans.  He further advised that there is one 

mandatory change from the ACCG pool: that effective July 1, 2018 we will be under the 

Essential Drug Formulary which will negatively affect about 10% of the employees.  He also 

explained the Renewal and Marketing Analysis and answered questions.  No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 

Chairman Hersey adjourned the work session at approximately 1:02 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

10



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Approval of 2018 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Fin) 

  

11



 2018 BUDGET AMENDMENT #2

General Fund Revenues:

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

Taxes 80,000 

Licenses and Permits 40,000 

Intergovernmental Revenue:

      Scrap Tire Grant 27,273 

      Off System Safety Grant 80,000 

      Forest Land Protection Reimbursement 67,636 

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 174,909 

Interest & Miscellaneous:

       Reimb - Damaged Property 5,578 

       Miscellaneous Revenue 10,000 

       Revenue - Sale of Assets 11,615 

Total Interest & Miscellaneous 27,193 

Appropriation from Fund Balance (224,137)

            Total General Fund Revenue Adjustment 97,965

General Fund Expenditures:

Tax Assessor 39,636

Magistrate Court 9,116

Emergency Management 18,000

Uncle Remus Golf Course 31,213

            Total General Fund Expenditure Adjustment 97,965

12



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance letter to MGRC regarding electronic 

forms, signatures, and payments (TA) 

  

13



 

 

April 17, 2018 
 
 
 
Ms. Laura Mathis 
Executive Director 
Middle Georgia Regional Commission 
175 Emery Highway, Suite C 
Macon, GA 31217 
 
Dear Ms. Mathis: 
 
Putnam County requests technical assistance in some work on our county website:  

1. converting website forms and applications to be uniform in appearance and to be 

electronically filled out and submitted; 

2. setting up electronic signature capability on all forms and applications; and  

3. accepting electronic payments.  

Please contact Lynn Butterworth, County Clerk regarding this application. 

 
Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Stephen J. Hersey, Chairman 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

14



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Approval of change to the May 15, 2018 BOC meeting location or date (staff-CC) 

  

15



Regular Meetings are scheduled to be held in Room 203                                                                    Approved by BOC 12/19/2017                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                  

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 ◊ 706-923-2345 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

2018 BOC MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

DATE DAY TIME 

January 5, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

January 16, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

February 2, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

February 20, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

March 2, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

March 20, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

April 6, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

April 17, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

May 4, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

May 15, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

June 1, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

June 19, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

July 6, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

July 17, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

August 3, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

August 21, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

September 7, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

September 18, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

October 5, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

October 16, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

November 2, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

November 20, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

December 7, 2018 Friday 9:00 am 

December 18, 2018 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

*Advance Voting will be in Room 203 May 14-18, 2018 

16



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Approval of 2018-2019 Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 

a. Medical (low and high plans) 
b. Dental 
c. Vision 
d. Basic Life 
e. Voluntary Term Life and AD&D 
f. Voluntary Short Term and Long Term Disability 
g. Voluntary AFLAC 
h. Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) 
i. ShawHankins Advantage Benefits Package 
  

  

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65


	Top
	1. 20180504 BOC Welcome
	2. 20180504 BOC Invocation
	3. 20180504 BOC Pledge
	4. 20180504 BOC Safe Boating Proclamation
	5. 20180504 BOC Public Comments
	6. 20180504 BOC Agenda Approval
	7. 20180504 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 04-06-18 BOC Minutes.pdf
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item 040618.pdf
	DRAFT 04-27-18 BOC Work Session Minutes.docx

	8. 20180504 BOC Budget Amendment
	2018 Budget Amendment #2.pdf

	9. 20180504 BOC Electronic Forms
	2018-04-17 Laura Mathis MGRC-TA letter for Electronic Forms.pdf

	10. 20180504 BOC Meeting Change
	2018 BOC Meeting Schedule with conflict.pdf

	11. 20180504 BOC Insurance
	ShawHankins 2018-2019 Beneifts Package.pdf

	12. 20180504 BOC TSPLOST
	13. 20180504 BOC CM Report
	14. 20180504 BOC CA Report
	15. 20180504 BOC Comm Announcements
	16. 20180504 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

